The Fred J. Heyne House is a 2-story, early 20th century Italian Renaissance Revival house built in 1924. The property faces north on Westmoreland Avenue with an unusually deep setback in the Westmoreland Addition of Houston, an older inner city neighborhood.(see photo #2). The house is further denoted by a low-pitched tripped roof covered in ceramic tile and a brick veneer exterior. Ornamentation is provided by stucco surfaces and cast concrete detailing in the arches over the front windows and in the transom and panels surrounding the front ,door. In the southwest corner of the property the original garage structure with quarters above is finished with asbestos shingle siding and has an asphalt composition shingle roof. A swimming pool at the southeast corner of the lot is a Noncontributing structure. 

The Heyne House is a 2-story, detached, single- family house at 220 Westmoreland Avenue between Garrott and Flora Avenues. The house faces north. The front yard is landscaped with flower beds along the base of the house, one large palm tree east of the walk to the front door, and an oak tree in the parkway between the sidewalk and the street (see site plan). A swimming pool at the southeast corner and landscaped flowerbeds along the perimeter highlight the back yard. 

In plan, the house is a rectangular block set on brick piers with a tripped roof covered in ceramic tile. The wooden balloon frame construction is covered with a brick veneer exterior that incorporates stucco and cast concrete detailing on the main facade. A 1-story rectangular addition with flat roof extends from the southwest corner (see site plan). 

The principal (north) elevation is dominated by a series of windows corresponding in number, but not in style, on the first and second floors. Beginning on the lower west side of the front facade is a pair of 8-light casement windows that open vertically. In the center of the first floor is a Palladian style (A,B,A) set of three double-hung windows surmounted by decorative arches. The arches are detailed by two courses of brick framing stucco finished faces that hold decorative cast concrete ornaments. In the center of the middle window is a cast concrete keystone (see photos 1 & 2). Beneath this set of windows is a low concrete planter box, enclosed by a delicate iron railing which creates the visual effect of a balcony (see photo 3). To the east (right) of these windows is a rectangular niche that is also faced with stucco and filled with a cast concrete decorative ornament (see photo 3). 

The entry is marked by an elaborate front porch, created by the projection of two pilasters and a rectangular pediment, which is embellished again with a stucco face and a cast concrete floral ornament. Found on the stucco faced pilasters are glass and pot metal light fixtures which are original to the house. Also, found on the inside surfaces of the pilasters, are veneered decorative concrete pilasters (see photo 3). A unique architectural detail, a curved ornamental buttress, is found juxtaposed to the left of the entrance. This detail visually connects the asymmetrical entrance with the rest of the elevation. At the termination of this buttress, there is a concrete planter that is part of the original design. The wooden front door holds four rectangular panes of glass (see photo 4). 

On the second floor of the north elevation, beginning on the east side, are a pair of single pane doublehung windows that correspond in size to the casement windows below. A set of three double-hung single-pane windows are in the center of the upper floor of the elevation identical to the set on the first floor; however, the lack of the arched detailing allows the first floor windows to become visually dominant (see photo 1). Above the entry pediment is a small porch with a delicate iron railing. Accenting this small porch is a double-hung window, flanked by wooden shutters which have refined detailing. On either side of this shuttered window are concrete ornamental medallions. 

The roof has widely overhanging eaves accentuated by rounded rafter tails. The use of such decorative brackets was a trademark of the architect, C.B. Schoeppl. A stucco chimney, with brick detailing and capped by ceramic tile, projects from the roof. It is a double flue chimney, allowing for a fireplace on the first and second floors (see photo 1). However, a fireplace was never installed on the second floor. 

The west elevation is also of a simple design. It consists primarily of simple double-hung windows. The focal point of this elevation are two thin, rectangular, doublehung windows which light an interior staircase landing (see photo 5). To the southern end of this elevation is a 1-story addition with a stucco facade(see photo 6). 

The south (rear) elevation begins at the west corner with the 1-story addition. The addition is lighted on its south and east facades with vertical fixed glass windows and two pairs of French doors, each with a large single fixed glass. Two double-hung windows are spaced evenly in the remaining lower portion of this elevation. On the second floor, above the addition, is a paned door which originally opened to a small balcony. This door now serves as an access to the roof of the 1-story addition. To the right of this door is a small double-hung window. To the left of this door is a brick chimney which serviced the original kitchen stove. It is non-functioning at this time. To the left of the chimney is a single double-hung window (see photo 7). Two double-hung windows are again spaced evenly in the remaining upper portion of the elevation, corresponding to those below. 

The east elevation consists primarily of the projected sun porch wing. The first floor fenestration consists of two pairs of double eight-light casement windows separated by a band of brickwork with a door to the backyard. The second floor has a row of five double- hung windows. On either side of this projected wing, on the main rectangular mass, there is a single double-hung window on both the first and second floor. 

On the interior, all rooms of the original house exist, except the kitchen. The construction of the interior consists of plaster covered shiplap walls. The foyer and the living room are of specific architectural interest. The foyer contains an unusual staircase which incorporates a series of plaster flower boxes in its design (see photo 14). The flower boxes are adorned with decorative plaster moldings which repeat the floral patterns found on the primary exterior elevation. 

From the foyer, one passes under a large arched opening into the living room which contains the most significant feature of the interior, the fireplace. The fireplace is constructed of brick and has a plaster facade featuring delicately detailed decorative plaster moldings. Other detailing consists of a small, recessed mantel in the middle of the fireplace and small projected mantels and ornamental light fixtures on either side (see photo 11 & 12). 

There are matching light fixtures found throughout the living room. The ceiling of the living room displays another treatment of ornamental plaster that is a continuing motif throughout this residence (see photo 10). From the living room, the dining room can be accessed through a large archway which has a wood inlay running its circumference. The projected sun porch on the east side of the main mass may also be accessed from the living room through a single 15-light door. A similar door allows access to the sun porch from the dining room. The interior of the sun porch is brick, unlike the other rooms (see photo 13). 

An arched opening at the base on the staircase is the access to the rear addition to the house. The addition incorporated the original kitchen into a large room that now has the kitchen partitioned in one corner (see photo 15) adjacent to which is an enclosed utility room (see photo 15 on right). The remainder of the room serves as a family room that opens onto the pool and backyard (see photo 16). 

Behind the house, in the southwest corner of the property, is the original 2-car garage with living quarters above which is the second contributing building. It is a wood frame building clad in asbestos shingles with a front gabled roof clad in composition shingles. There was an addition of a single-car garage to its west facade in 1988 (see photo 9). The original garage doors have been changed to 15-light French doors with 10-light sidelights. The garage interior has been converted to an artist's studio by the addition of air conditioning and sheetrock to finish the wall surfaces. The upstairs living quarters remain intact and are still occupied. A swimming pool and iron fencing were added in 1983. 

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE: 

The Fred J. Heyne House and garage retain their integrity. They are in excellent condition, largely restored, and well-maintained on both the interior and exterior. 

The Fred J. Heyne House (1924) is an excellent example of Italian Renaissance Revival architecture, and a significant example of the work of Houston architect C.B. Schoeppl. The Heyne House is the only Italian Renaissance Revival style house in the Westmoreland Addition, and consequently is a prominent element in the neighborhood. The rarity of the architectural style, its quality design, and attention to architectural detail makes the house eligible under Criterion C in the area of Architecture at the local level. 

The Heyne House occupies a single lot on Westmoreland Avenue, the major street in Houston's Westmoreland Addition. Westmoreland was the first subdivision in Houston patterned after the private places of St. Louis. The plan was developed by the South End Land Company. W.W. Baldwin, president of the company, retained Julius Pitzman, the St. Louis civil engineer responsible for the private place neighborhoods in St. Louis such as Benton Place (1868), Vandervent Place (1870), and the Forest Park Addition (1888), to design the Westmoreland Addition for Houston. The St. Louis private places were all characterized by a main thoroughfare with a expansive median. The Westmoreland Addition was designed instead with the main thoroughfare (Westmoreland Avenue) being wider than the adjacent streets (Emerson and Marshall) with wide setbacks between the curb and the sidewalk. The entrance of Westmoreland was originally marked by brick piers supported iron gates as were all of the St. Louis preclecessors. These were at the east end of Westmoreland Avenue, demolished in the early l950s. 

Identifying features of the Italian Renaissance Revival style include a low-pitched tripped roof covered, traditionally, with ceramic tiles. Commonly, the roof has wide, overhanging eaves with decorative bracketing underneath. The facades are typically symmetrical, with exceptions being a placement of a doorway or window. The first story fenestration is more elaborate than second story. Common detailing includes arched doorways and first floor windows, and classical columns or pilasters seffing off entrance ways. The Heyne House possesses all of these characteristics, and consequently is an excellent example of the style. 

The Heyne House was designed and built by C.B. Schoeppl Co., Inc., a Houston architectural firm. Schoeppl was born in Comfort, Texas, however, his father was a native of Austria-Hungry and his mother was a native of Germany. Schoeppl received his architectural training at the Beaux Arts Academy, Paris, and at the Royal Academy in London. His preference for Classical Revival reflects his education. Schoeppl established his firm in 1922 and designed many fine residences and public buildings in Houston. The Johnelle Bryan :.House at 15 Courtland Place in Houston is similar in design to the Heyne House. In the Bryan House, Schoeppl employs a low-pitched tripped roof of ceramic tile and his trademark rounded rafter tails supporting deep eaves that shelter the house. C.B. Schoeppl Co. Inc., was not only a local firm, for he obtained commissions nationwide. The firm also was active in Florida but is best known for being one of the leading architectural firms of Houston. 

In the early 1920s the Heyne House was occupied by Mr. and Mrs. Fred J. Heyne. Fred J. Heyne was born December 31, 1878, in Houston to Charles G. and Frances Heyne. Heyne grew up in Houston and began working in the banking business at the age of fourteen. He was the vice- president of The Bankers Mortgage Company; director of Jesse H. Jonesand Company, National Bank of Commerce, The Houston Hotel Association; and vice-president and director of the Jones Lumber Company. He was a member of the Houston Club and the First Methodist Church. 

In 1900, Mr. Heyne married Hallie Brookshire. They had one son, Charles. Mrs. Heyne passed away soon after, and Heyne married a second time in 1906 to Mayne E. Green. They had one son, Frederick J. Heyne, Jr. Heyne purchased Lot 7 on Westmoreland Avenue from the Southern Loan and Investment Company on October 4, 1919. The cost of the lot was $5,000.00. Heyne then commissioned C.B. Schoeppl Co., Inc. to design the house for the lot. The Heyne's occupied 220 Westmoreland Avenue in 1924 upon completion of the house, and remained there until 1951 when they sold it and moved to the Rice Hotel. The house has had several occupants since that time, and the present owners, Mr. and Mrs. Terry Ott purchased the house in 1980. 

The Fred J. Heyne House has been sensitively restored and conscientiously maintained. It is significance as an example of a uncommon architectural style, the Italian Renaissance Revival, as well as an example of Houston architect C.B. Schoeppl. The house is largely intact with a high degree of integrity. 

